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investigation are or will be available for
inspection during official business
hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the
Office of the Secretary, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E
Street SW., Washington, DC 20436,
telephone 202–205–2000. General
information concerning the Commission
may also be obtained by accessing its
Internet server (http://www.usitc.gov).
The public record for this investigation
may be viewed on the Commission’s
electronic docket (EDIS) at http://
edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired
persons are advised that information on
the matter can be obtained by contacting
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202–
205–1810.
The
Commission instituted this investigation
on September 12, 2003, based on a
complaint filed by American Biophysics
Corp. (‘‘ABC’’) of North Kingstown,
Rhode Island. 68 FR 24755. The
complaint, as supplemented, alleged
violations of section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930 in the importation into the
United States, sale for importation, and/
or sale within the United States after
importation of certain insect traps that
infringe the claims of ABC’s U.S.
Patents No. 6,286,249 and No.
6,145,243. The notice of investigation
identified one respondent, Blue Rhino
Corp. (‘‘BRC’’) of Winston-Salem, North
Carolina.
On November 10, 2003, ABC filed a
motion to amend its complaint to add
the following four entities as
respondents in the investigation: Blue
Rhino Consumer Products (‘‘BRCP’’),
LLC of Winston-Salem, North Carolina;
Blue Rhino Global Sourcing, LLC
(‘‘BRGS’’), of Winston-Salem, North
Carolina; Guangdong Dong Fang Imp. &
Exp. Corp. of Shenzhen, China; and
Lentek International, Inc. of Kissimmee,
Florida. The Commission investigative
attorney supported the motion. Existing
respondent BRC and proposed
respondents BRCP and BRGS filed a
response indicating that they did not
oppose the motion.
On December 8, 2003, the presiding
administrative law judge issued an ID
(Order No. 5) granting ABC’s motion. No
petitions for review of the ID were filed.
This action is taken under the
authority of section 337 of the Tariff Act
of 1930, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and section
210.42(h) of the Commission Rules of
Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR
210.42(h).

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

By order of the Commission.
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Issued: January 7, 2004.
Marilyn R. Abbott,
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 04–675 Filed 1–12–04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION
[Inv. No. 337–TA–504]

In the Matter of Certain Signature
Capture Transaction Devices and
Component Parts Thereof, and
Systems That Employ Such Devices;
Notice of Investigation
AGENCY: International Trade
Commission.
ACTION: Institution of investigation
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337.
SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a
complaint was filed with the U.S.
International Trade Commission on
December 9, 2003, under section 337 of
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19
U.S.C. 1337, on behalf of NCR
Corporation of Dayton, Ohio. An
amended complaint was filed on
December 24, 2003, and a supplement to
the amended complaint was filed on
December 29, 2003. The complaint, as
amended and supplemented, alleges
violations of section 337 in the
importation into the United States, the
sale for importation, and the sale within
the United States after importation of
certain signature capture transaction
devices and component parts thereof,
and systems that employ such devices,
by reason of infringement of claims 20,
46, 55, and 65 of U.S. Patent No.
6,539,363. The complaint further alleges
that an industry in the United States
exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of
section 337.
The complainant requests that the
Commission institute an investigation
and, after the investigation, issue a
permanent exclusion order and
permanent cease and desist orders.
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for
any confidential information contained
therein, is available for inspection
during official business hours (8:45 a.m.
to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the
Secretary, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street SW., Room
112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone
(202) 205–2000. Hearing impaired
individuals are advised that information
on this matter can be obtained by
contacting the Commission’s TDD
terminal on (202) 205–1810. Persons
with mobility impairments who will
need special assistance in gaining access
to the Commission should contact the
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Office of the Secretary at (202) 205–
2000. General information concerning
the Commission may also be obtained
by accessing its Internet server at
http://www.usitc.gov. The public record
for this investigation may be viewed on
the Commission’s electronic docket
imaging system (EDIS) at http://
edis.usitc.gov.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Jeffrey R. Whieldon, Esq., Office of
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S.
International Trade Commission,
telephone (202) 205–2580.
Authority: The authority for institution of
this investigation is contained in section 337
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and
in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules
of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10
(2003).

Scope of Investigation: Having
considered the complaint, the U.S.
International Trade Commission, on
January 6, 2004, ordered that—
(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended, an investigation be instituted
to determine whether there is a
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of
section 337 in the importation into the
United States, the sale for importation,
or the sale within the United States after
importation of certain signature capture
transaction devices, or component parts
thereof, or systems that employ such
devices by reason of infringement of
claims 20, 46, 55, or 65 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,539,363 and whether an industry
in the United States exists as required
by subsection (a)(2) of section 337.
(2) For the purpose of the
investigation so instituted, the following
are hereby named as parties upon which
this notice of investigation shall be
served:
(a) The complainant is—NCR
Corporation, 1700 South Patterson
Boulevard, Dayton, Ohio 45479–0001.
(b) The respondents are the following
companies alleged to be in violation of
section 337, and are parties upon which
the complaint is to be served:
Ingenico S.A., d/b/a, Groupe Ingenico,
9, Quai de Dion Bouton, 92816.
Puteaux Cedex, France.
Ingenico Corp., 1003 Mansell Road,
Roswell, Georgia 30076.
SMTC Corporation, 635 Hood Road,
Markham, Ontario, Canada L3R4N6.
(c) Jeffrey R. Whieldon Esq., Office of
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E
Street SW., Suite 401, Washington, DC
20436, who shall be the Commission
investigative attorney, party to this
investigation; and
(4) For the investigation so instituted,
the Honorable Charles E. Bullock is

E:\FR\FM\13JAN1.SGM

13JAN1

Federal Register / Vol. 69, No. 8 / Tuesday, January 13, 2004 / Notices
designated as the presiding
administrative law judge.
Responses to the complaint and the
notice of investigation must be
submitted by the named respondents in
accordance with section 210.13 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to
19 CFR 201.16(d) and 210.13(a), such
responses will be considered by the
Commission if received not later than 20
days after the date of service by the
Commission of the complaint and the
notice of investigation. Extensions of
time for submitting the responses to the
complaint and the notice of
investigation will not be granted unless
good cause therefor is shown.
Failure of a respondent to file a timely
response to each allegation in the
complaint and in this notice may be
deemed to constitute a waiver of the
right to appear and contest the
allegations of the complaint and this
notice, and to authorize the
administrative law judge and the
Commission, without further notice to
the respondent, to find the facts to be as
alleged in the complaint and this notice
and to enter a final determination
containing such findings, and may
result in the issuance of a limited
exclusion order or cease and desist
order or both directed against such
respondent.
By order of the Commission.
Issued: January 7, 2004.
Marilyn R. Abbott,
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 04–674 Filed 1–12–04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Office of Justice Programs
Agency Information Collection
Activities: Proposed Collection;
Comments Requested
Action: 30-Day notice of information
collection under review: Application for
Public Safety Officers’ Educational
Assistance.
The Department of Justice, Office of
Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice
Assistance, Payments and Benefits
Division has submitted the following
information collection request to the
Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) for review and approval in
accordance with the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1995. The proposed
information collection is published to
obtain comments from the public and
affected agencies. This proposed
information collection was previously
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published in the Federal Register
Volume 68, Number 202, page 59951 on
October 20, 2003, allowing for a 60 day
comment period.
The purpose of this notice is to allow
for an additional 30 days for public
comment until February 12, 2004. This
process is conducted in accordance with
5 CFR 1320.10.
Written comments and/or suggestions
regarding the items contained in this
notice, especially the estimated public
burden and associated response time,
should be directed to The Office of
Management and Budget, Office of
Information and Regulatory Affairs,
Attention Department of Justice Desk
Officer, Washington, DC 20503.
Additionally, comments may be
submitted to OMB via facsimile to (202)
395–7285.
Written comments and suggestions
from the public and affected agencies
concerning the proposed collection of
information are encouraged. Your
comments should address one or more
of the following four points:
(1) Evaluate whether the proposed
collection of information is necessary
for the proper performance of the
functions of the agency, including
whether the information will have
practical utility;
(2) Evaluate the accuracy of the
agencies estimate of the burden of the
proposed collection of information,
including the validity of the
methodology and assumptions used;
(3) Enhance the quality, utility, and
clarity of the information to be
collected; and
(4) Minimize the burden of the
collection of information on those who
are to respond, including through the
use of appropriate automated,
electronic, mechanical, or other
technological collection techniques or
other forms of information technology,
e.g., permitting electronic submission of
responses.
Overview of this information:
(1) Type of information collection:
Reinstatement, with Change, of a
Previously Approved Collection for
which Approval has Expired.
(2) The title of the form/collection:
Application for Public Safety Officers’
Educational Assistance.
(3) The agency form number, if any,
and the applicable component of the
department sponsoring the collection:
Form Number: OJP Form Number 1240/
20. Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office
of Justice Programs, Department of
Justice.
(4) Affected public who will be asked
or required to respond, as well as a brief
abstract: Primary: individuals or
households. Other: None. The agency
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requires the information requested on
this application to determine if
individuals are eligible to receive
educational assistance through the
Public Safety Officers’ Educational
Assistance (PSOEA) Program, as
established by the PSOEA Act of 1998
(Pub. L. 104–238). Respondents who
complete the application may be
spouses or eligible children of a public
safety officer who was killed or
permanently injured in the line of duty.
(5) An estimate of the total number of
respondents and the amount of time
estimated for an average respondent to
respond/reply: It is estimated that 150
respondents will complete the
application in approximately 20
minutes.
(6) An estimate of the total public
burden (in hours) associated with the
collection: The estimated total public
burden associated with this application
is 50 hours.
If additional information is required
contact: Mrs. Brenda E. Dyer, Deputy
Clearance Officer, United States
Department of Justice, Policy and
Planning Staff, Justice Management
Division, Suite 1600, Patrick Henry
Building, 601 D Street NW.,
Washington, DC 20530.
Dated: January 7, 2004.
Brenda E. Dyer,
Department Deputy Clearance Officer,
Department of Justice.
[FR Doc. 04–633 Filed 1–12–04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410–18–U

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Office of the Secretary
Submission for OMB Review;
Comment Request
January 6, 2004.

The Department of Labor (DOL) has
submitted the following public
information collection requests (ICRs) to
the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) for review and approval in
accordance with the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1995 (Pub. L. 104–13,
44 U.S.C. Chapter 35). A copy of each
individual ICR, with applicable
supporting documentation, may be
obtained by calling the Department of
Labor, Departmental Clearance Officer,
Ira Mills ((202) 693–4122) or by e-Mail
to Mills-Ira@dol.gov.
Comments should be sent to Office of
Information and Regulatory Affairs,
Attn: OMB Desk Officer for BLS, Office
of Management and Budget, Room
10235, Washington, DC 20503 ((202)
395–6881), within 30 days from the date
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